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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Yulon Nissan Motor Company, Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yulon Nissan Motor Company, Ltd.
(the Company), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2020 in
accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by
Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China.
We conducted our audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 in
accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by
Certified Public Accountants, Rule of No.1090360805 issued by the Financial Supervisory
Commission of the Republic of China on February 25, 2020 and auditing standards generally
accepted in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified
Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



The key audit matter of the Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020
is described as follows:

Depreciation of Molds and Dies

In accordance with IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”, the depreciable amount of an asset
should be allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. The Company depreciates molds and
dies using the unit of production method, and reviews the estimated number of vehicles that are
expected to be sold in the future for each vehicle model every six months based on market sales.
The estimated number of vehicles to be sold is then used to calculate the amount allocated to each
mold and die, and is used as the basis for the depreciation of molds and dies. The depreciation of
molds and dies in 2020 was $542,784 thousand. Since the amount of depreciation of molds and
dies is significant and estimates of the units sold are highly dependent on management’s judgment,
the depreciation of molds and dies is considered to be a key audit matter.

The related accounting policies and critical accounting judgments are disclosed in Notes 4 and 5 to
the financial statements, respectively; the related amounts are disclosed in Note 11 to the financial
statements.

We understood the Company’s depreciation process of molds and dies and related control systems,
evaluated the design of the controls and tested the operating effectiveness of the controls. We also
obtained the information and documents from management which is used as the basis for the
estimated number of units of vehicles of each model to be sold in the future and assessed the
rationality and reliability of the supporting information. In addition, we took appropriate samples of
the transactions of molds and dies and checked them against the original documents and cash flows,
performed inventory counts and sent confirmation requests. We also recalculated the amount of
depreciation of molds and dies on the basis of estimated production volume and assessed the
rationality of the calculated depreciation and the accuracy of the carrying amount of the molds and
dies. Moreover, we determined that there was no significant difference between the amended
estimated number of units of future sales of vehicles in the previous year’s financial statements and
the actual number of units sold, and confirmed the appropriateness of management’s estimation.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including independent directors and the audit committee, are
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.



From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Wan-I Liao
and Cheng-Chuan Yu.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

March 23, 2021

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position,
Jinancial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards,
procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally applied in the
Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying financial
statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used
in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original
Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language
independent auditors’ report and financial statements shall prevail.



YULON NISSAN MOTOR COMPANY, LTD.

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Par Value)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 4 and 7)
Notes receivable (Notes 4, 8 and 20)
Notes receivable - related parties (Notes 4, 20 and 27)
Trade receivables (Notes 4, 8 and 20)
Trade receivables - related parties (Notes 4, 20 and 27)
Other receivables (Notes 4 and 8)
Other receivables - related parties (Notes 4 and 27)
Prepayments

Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments accounted for using the equity method (Notes 4 and 10)
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 5, 11 and 27)
Right-of-use assets (Notes 4, 12 and 27)
Computer software (Notes 4 and 13)
Deferred tax assets (Notes 4 and 22)
Other non-current assets (Notes 14 and 27)

Total non-current assets

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Contract liabilities (Notes 4, 20 and 27)
Trade payables
Trade payables - related parties (Note 27)
Other payables (Note 15)
Other payables - related parties (Note 27)
Lease liabilities (Notes 4, 12 and 27)
Current tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 22)
Provisions (Notes 4, 5 and 16)
Other current Liabilities (Note 17)

Total current liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provisions (Notes 4, 5 and 16)
Lease liabilities (Notes 4, 12 and 27)
Tax liabilities - non-current (Notes 4 and 22)
Net defined benefit liabilities (Notes 4 and 18)
Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 22)

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY

Capital stock - NT$10 par value; authorized - 600,000 thousand stocks; issued and outstanding - 300,000

thousand stocks
Capital surplus
Retained eamings
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated eamings
Total retained eamnings
Other equity

Total equity

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2020 2019
Amount % Amount %
$ 5,334,781 19 § 5,051,278 18
626,514 2 1,251,525 5
1,934 - - -
579 - 4,732 -
12,419 - 18,184 -
389,371 2 426,488 1
38,200 - 27,077 -
133,801 1 205,231 1
327 - 1065 __ -
6,537,926 24 6,985,580 25
17,864,822 64 17,548,758 64
1,929,478 7 1,934,280 7
683,655 3 729,943 3
39,382 - 22,170 -
85,881 - 106,927 1
622,986 _2 72,771 -
21,226,704 _76 20,414,849 75
§ 27764630 100  §.27400429 100
] - - $ 33,029 -
16,763 - 21,906 -
174,944 1 419,332 1
855,425 3 924918 3
182,293 1 178,814 1
51,616 - 54,190 -
978,846 3 706,161 3
218,982 1 191,241 i
4,364 - 4,607 -
2483233 92 2534198 9
71,330 - 60,559 -
630,505 2 670,159 2
349,455 i . .
136,796 1 232,025 1
2.418.760 _9 2330164 __ 9
. 3.606,846 13 _ 3292907 12
6,090,079 _22 5,827,105 21
3.000.000 1t 3,000,000 __11
5.988.968 22 5,988,968 22
6,194,981 22 5,473,169 20
1,270,832 4 1,163,895 4
6,548,206 _24 7,218,124  _27
14,014,019 _50 13,855,188  _ 51
(1,328.436) _ (5 (1,270,832) 5)
21,674,551 _ 18 21,573,324 _79
3 27764630 100 3 27400429 100



YULON NISSAN MOTOR COMPANY, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

2020 2019
Amount Yo Amount %
OPERATING REVENUE (Notes 20 and 27)
Sales (Note 4) $ 29,441,044 99 $ 32,145,186 99
Service revenue (Note 4) 119,075 1 269,315 1
Other operating revenue 100,519 - 84,106 -
Total operating revenue 29,660,638 100 32,498,607 100
OPERATING COSTS (Notes 9, 21 and 27) 25,566,106 86 27,650,385 85
GROSS PROFIT 4,094,532 14 4,848,222 15
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 21 and 27)
Selling and marketing expenses 2,760,434 9 2,481,695 8
General and administrative expenses 395,781 2 353,264 1
Research and development expenses 597,114 2 621,509 2
Total operating expenses 3,753,329 13 3,456,468 11
OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
(Note 21) 289 - 2.491 -
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 341.492 1 1,394,245 4
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
Share of profit of subsidiary 7,731,128 26 7,572,985 24
Net foreign exchange gain (Note 21) 58,568 - 82,648 -
Gain on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, net 29,014 - 11,525 -
Interest income (Note 4) 22,048 - 56,633 -
Other revenue (Note 27) 6,923 - 1,892 -
Interest expenses (Note 27) (14,760) - (7,954) -
Gain (loss) on disposal of investments, net (Note 21) (5,477) - 9,815 -
Overseas business expenses (Note 27) (6,420) - (7,069) -
Other losses (1,546) - (2,453) -
Total non-operating income and expenses 7.819.478 26 7.718,022 24
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8,160,970 27 9,112,267 28
INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Notes 4 and 22) 1,620,032 5 1.830.370 5
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 6,540,938 22 7,281,897 23
{Continued)



YULON NISSAN MOTOR COMPANY, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

2020 2019
Amount %% Amount %

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (Note 18)  § (1,364) - $ 13,137 -
Share of the other comprehensive loss of
subsidiaries accounted for using the equity
method (20) - (5D -
Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(Notes 4 and 22) 277 - (2,617) -
(1,107 - 10,469 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss:
Exchange differences on the translation of foreign
operations (57,604) - (538.677) (2)

Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of
income tax (58,711)

(528,208) (2)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE

YEAR $ 6482227 2 $ 6,753,689 21
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 23)

Basic 21.80 $24.27

Diluted 21.80 24.27
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. (Concluded)
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YULON NISSAN MOTOR COMPANY, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expenses
Amortization expenses
Gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, net
Interest expense
Interest income
Share of the profit of subsidiary
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net
Loss (gain) on disposal of investment, net
Net foreign exchange gain
Recognition of inventory purchase commitments
Warranty costs
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Notes receivable
Notes receivable - related parties
Trade receivables
Trade receivables - related parties
Other receivables
Other receivables - related parties
Prepayments
Contract liabilities
Trade payables
Trade payables - related parties
Other payables
Other payables - related parties
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Net defined benefit liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received
Interest received
Payments for property, plant and equipment (Note 24)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Payments for computer software (Note 24)
Increase (decrease) in refundable deposits

Net cash generated from investing activities

2020 2019
$ 8,160,970 $ 9,112,267
630,998 488,296
25,877 10,183
(29,014) (11,525)
14,760 7,954
(22,048) (56,633)
(7,731,128) (7,572,985)
(289) (2,491)
5,477 (9,815)
(134,789) (118,652)
11,177 10,797
186,235 127,708
648,548 (905,056)
(1,934) -
4,153 (4,219)
5,765 13,156
37,080 297,735
(13,049) 26,243
71,430 (28,916)
738 - 1,446
(33,029) (40,011)
(65,743) (124,888)
(304,007) (343,433)
(69,493) (56,188)
3,479 (194,000)
(243) (72)
(158,900) (136,218)
(96,593) (84.719)
1,146,428 405,964
(14,760) (7,954)
(887.973) (1,341.737)
243,695 (943.727)
7,357,440 5,393,130
23,973 59,415
(465,919) (736,811)
476 5,571
(11,958) (7,201)
(562.372) 92,951
6.341.640 4,807,055
(Continued)



YULON NISSAN MOTOR COMPANY, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of the principal portion of lease liabilities $  (55,658) $ (53,613)

Payments of dividends (6,381,000) (5.301,000)

Cash used in financing activities (6,436,658) (5,354,613)

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON THE BALANCE

OF CASH HELD IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES 134,826 118,580
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 283,503 (1,372,705)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE

YEAR 5,051,278 6,423,983
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR $ 5334781 $ 5,051,278
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. (Concluded)

-10 -



YULON NISSAN MOTOR COMPANY, LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Yulon Nissan Motor Company, Ltd. (the “Company”) is mainly engaged in the research and development
of vehicles and the sale of vehicles. The Company started its operations in October 2003, after Yulon Motor
Co., Ltd. (“Yulon”) transferred its sales and research and development businesses to the Company in
October 2003 through a spin-off. The Company’s spin-off from Yulon was intended to increase Yulon’s
competitive advantage and participation in the global automobile network and to enhance its professional
management. The spin-off date was October 1, 2003.

Yulon initially held 100% equity interest in the Company but then transferred 40% of its equity to Nissan
Motor Co., Ltd. (“Nissan”), a Japanese motor company, on October 30, 2003. The Company became listed
on December 21, 2004 after the initial public offering application of the Company was accepted by the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation on October 6, 2004.

2. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying financial statements were approved by the Company’s board of directors on March 23,
2021.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND
INTERPRETATIONS

a. Initial application of the amendments to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports
by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International
Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC)
(collectively, the “IFRSs”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission

(FSO)
Effective Date
New IFRSs Announced by IASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business” January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 “Interest Rate Benchmark January 1, 2020
Reform”

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Material” January 1, 2020
Amendment to IFRS 16 “Covid-19 - Related Rent Concessions” June 1, 2020

The initial application of the IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC did not have a material
impact on the Company’s accounting policies.

-11-



b. The IFRSs endorsed by the FSC for application starting from 2021

Effective Date
New IFRSs Announced by IASB
Amendments to IFRS 4 “Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Effective immediately upon
Applying IFRS 97 promulgation by the IASB
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 January 1, 2021

“Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2”
As of the date the financial statements were authorized for issue, the Company assessed that the
application of other standards and interpretations did not have material impact on the Company’s

financial position and financial performance.

¢. New IFRSs in issue but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC

Effective Date
New IFRSs Announced by IASB (Note 1)
“Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020” January 1, 2022 (Note 2)
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework” January 1, 2022 (Note 3)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets  To be determined by IASB
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 17 January 1, 2023

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or January 1, 2023
Non-current”

Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” January 1, 2023 (Note 6)

Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates” January 1, 2023 (Note 7)

Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds January 1, 2022 (Note 4)
before Intended Use”

Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a January 1, 2022 (Note 5)
Contract”

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above New IFRSs are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: The amendments to IFRS 9 will be applied prospectively to modifications and exchanges of
financial liabilities that occur on or after the annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022. The amendments to IAS 41 “Agriculture” will be applied prospectively to
the fair value measurements on or after the annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022. The amendments to IFRS 1 “First-time Adoptions of IFRSs” will be applied
retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022.

Note 3: The amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2022.

Note 4: The amendments are applicable to property, plant and equipment that are brought to the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended

by management on or after January 1, 2021.

Note 5: The amendments are applicable to contracts for which the entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations on January 1, 2022.

Note 6: The amendments will be applied prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2023.

-12 -



4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation
of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and IFRSs as endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the financial instruments
and net defined benefit liabilities which are measured at the present values of the defined benefit obligation
less than fair value of plan assets.

The fair value measurements, which are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value measurement inputs are observable and based on the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

a. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

b. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

c. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

When preparing its financial statements, the Company used equity method to account for its investment in
subsidiaries. In order for the amounts of the net profit for the year, other comprehensive income for the year
and total equity in the financial statements to be the same as the amounts attributable to the owner of the
Company in its consolidated financial statements, adjustments arising from the differences in accounting
treatment between the parent company only basis and the consolidated basis were made to investments
accounted for using the equity method, share of profit or loss of subsidiaries, share of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries, as appropriate, in the financial statements.

Classification of Current and Non-current Assets and Liabilities

Current assets include:

a. Assets held primarily for the purpose of trading;

b. Assets expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period; and

c. Cash and cash equivalents unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Current liabilities include:
a. Liabilities held primarily for the purpose of trading;
b. Liabilities due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; and

c. Liabilities for which the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
12 months after the reporting period.

Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are classified as non-current.
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Foreign Currencies

The functional currency of Company and presentation currency of the financial statements are both New
Taiwan dollar (NT$). The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates.

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the New Taiwan dollar are
recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Such exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated.

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries accounted for using the equity method which were prepared
using foreign currencies are translated into New Taiwan dollars at the following exchange rates: Assets and
liabilities - year-end rates; profit and loss - average rates during the year; equity - historical rates. The
resulting differences are recorded as other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Inventory write-downs are made by item,
except where it may be appropriate to group similar or related items. The net realizable value is the
estimated selling price of inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. Inventories are recorded at the weighted-average cost on the balance sheet date.

Investments in Subsidiaries

The Company uses the equity method to account for its investments in subsidiaries. Subsidiary is an entity
that is controlled by the Company.

Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognized at cost and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognize the Company’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
subsidiary after the date of acquisition. Besides, the Company also recognizes the Company’s share of the
change in other equity of the subsidiaries.

Investments accounted for using the equity method are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. When there is objective evidence that the investments accounted for using the equity
method have been impaired, the impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

Other than molds and dies, which are depreciated on the basis of the estimated number of vehicles to be
sold in the future, other items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of assets are reviewed at the
end of each year, and the estimated sales volume is reviewed every six months, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

On derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.
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Computer Software

Computer software is initially stated at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortization.
The amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over 3 years. The estimated useful, residual value
and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The residual value of computer software shall be assumed to
be zero unless the Company expects to dispose of the asset before the end of its economic life.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-Use Assets and Computer Software

When the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and computer software
exceeds its recoverable amount, the excess is recognized as an impairment loss. When the impairment loss
is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but only to the extent of the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
in profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

a. Measurement categories

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at FVTPL and financial
assets at amortized cost.

1) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when such a financial assets are mandatorily classified
or designated as at FVTPL. Financial assets mandatorily classified as at FVTPL include
investments in equity instruments which are not designated as at FVTOCI and debt instruments that
do not meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria.
Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss does
not incorporate any dividends or interest earned on such a financial asset. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in Note 26.

2) Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect confractual cash flows; and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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b.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost, including cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables at amortized cost and other receivables, are measured at amortized
cost, which equals the gross carrying amount determined using the effective interest method less
any impairment loss. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
such a financial asset, except for:

a) Purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, for which interest income is calculated
by applying the credit adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of such financial
assets; and

b) Financial assets that are not credit impaired on purchase or origination but have subsequently
become credit impaired, for which interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortized cost of such financial assets in subsequent reporting periods.

Cash equivalents include time deposits and repurchase agreements collateralized by bonds with
original maturities within 3 months from the date of acquisition, which are highly liquid, readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
These cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets at amortized
cost (including trade receivables) and contract assets.

The Company always recognizes lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) for trade receivables. For all
other financial instruments, the Company recognizes lifetime ECLs when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

Expected credit losses reflect the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring reflected in the weights. Lifetime ECLs represents the expected credit losses that will result
from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month
ECLs represent the portion of lifetime ECLs that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The Company recognizes an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party.

Financial liabilities

a.

Subsequent measurement

All the financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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b. Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognizes a financial liability only when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled, or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognized in profit or loss.

Provisions

a. Inventory purchase commitments
Where the Company has a commitment for which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received, the present obligations arising from such
commitments are recognized and measured as provisions.

b. Warranties
Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations are recognized at the date of sale of the relevant
products, at the best estimate by the management of the Company of the expenditure required to settle
the Company’s obligation.

Revenue Recognition

The Company identifies contracts with the customers, allocates the transaction price to the performance
obligations, and recognizes revenue when performance obligations are satisfied.

a. Revenue from the sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods comes from sales of vehicles and parts. Revenue from the sale of goods
is recognized when the goods are delivered and legal ownership of the goods has been transferred to the
customer.

b. Revenue from the rendering of services
Revenue from the rendering of services comes from the provision of design and research and
development services for cars. Contract assets and revenue are recognized by reference to the stage of
completion of the respective contract, and contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables when the
remaining obligation is performed. If the milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognized to date,
then the Company recognizes a contract liability for the difference.

Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease.

The Company as lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases at the commencement date of
a lease, except for short-term leases and low-value asset leases accounted for applying a recognition
exemption where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial measurement of lease
liabilities adjusted for lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs needed to restore the underlying assets, and less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are
presented on a separate line in the consolidated balance sheets.
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Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement dates to the
earlier of the end of the useful lives of the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease terms.

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, which comprise fixed
payments.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in a lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate.

Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognized over the lease terms. When there is a change in a lease term, the Company
remeasures the lease liabilities with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use-assets. However, if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero, any remaining amount of the remeasurement
is recognized in profit or loss. Lease liabilities are presented on a separate line in the consolidated balance
sheets.

Employee Benefits
a. Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related services.

b. Retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit costs (including service cost, net interest and remeasurement) under the defined benefit
retirement benefit plans are determined using the projected unit credit method. Service cost and net
interest on the net defined benefit liabilities are recognized as employee benefits expense in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest), is recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which it
occurs. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Net defined benefit liabilities represent the actual deficit in the Company’s defined benefit plans.
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
a. Current tax
Current tax payable is dependent on current taxable income. Taxable income is different from the net
income before tax on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the reason that some
revenue and expenses are taxable or deductible items in other periods, or not taxable or deductible items
according to the Income Tax Act. The Company’s current tax liabilities are calculated using the

legislated tax rate on the balance sheet date.

According to the Income Tax Act in the ROC, an additional tax on unappropriated eamings is provided
for in the year the shareholders approve to retain earnings.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are added to or deducted from the current year’s tax provision.

-18 -



b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered. A previously unrecognized deferred tax asset is also reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and recognized to the to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liabilities are settled or the assets are realized.

c. Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income, in which case, the current and deferred taxes are also
recognized in other comprehensive income.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period.

a. Property, plant and equipment — allocation of depreciation of molds and dies
The Company depreciates molds and dies on the basis of the unit production method and reviews the
estimated number of vehicles that are expected to be sold in the future for each vehicle model every six

months based on market sales. The estimated number of vehicles to be sold is then used to calculate the
amount allocated to each mold and die, and is used as the basis for the depreciation of molds and dies.
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b. Provisions for the expected cost of warranties

The provisions for warranties are calculated on the basis of the estimate of quarterly warranty
expenditure per car and the estimated units subject to warranty during the future warranty period. The
estimate of quarterly warranty expenditure per car is calculated based on the average of actual warranty
expense in the past and the estimated number of units of cars subject to warranty at the end of every
quarter. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of provisions for warranties were
$170,576 thousand and $143,241 thousand, respectively.

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31
2020 2019

Checking accounts and demand deposits $ 314,790 $ 1,242,121
Foreign currency demand deposits 1,368,071 1,207,747
Cash equivalents

Foreign currency time deposits 3,326,520 2,594,420

Time deposits 6,990 6,990

Repurchase agreements collateralized by bonds 318.410 -

$ 5334781 $ 5,051,278

Cash equivalents include time deposits and repurchase agreements collateralized by bonds with original
maturities within 3 months from the date of acquisition, which are highly liquid, readily convertible to a
known amount of cash, and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. These cash equivalents
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

The market interest rate intervals of demand deposits, time deposits and repurchase agreements
collateralized by bonds at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

December 31
2020 2019
Demand deposits and time deposits 0.01%-1.80% 0.01%-2.95%
Repurchase agreements collateralized by bonds 1.05% -
7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
December 31
2020 2019
Financial assets mandatorily classified as at FVTPL
Non-derivative financial assets
Mutual funds $ 626514 3§ 1,251,525
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8. NOTES RECEIVABLE, TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

December 31
2020 2019

Notes receivable

At amortized cost $_ 1934 3 -
Trade receivables

At amortized cost 3 12419 $ 18,184
Other receivables

Interest receivables $ 1,540 $ 3,465
Others 36,660 23,612

§ 38,200 § 27,077

a. Notes receivable

In order to minimize credit risk, the sales department monitors payment collection regularly to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Company reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate allowance is made for possible irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management believes
the Company’s credit risk was significantly reduced.

The Company applies the simplified approach to provisions for expected credit losses prescribed by
IFRS 9, which permits the use of a lifetime expected losses provision for all notes receivable. The
expected credit losses on notes receivable are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience with the respective debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position,
adjusted for the general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtor operates and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecasted direction of economic conditions at the
reporting date. The provision for losses based on the past due status of receivables is further
distinguished by domestic customers and foreign customers. Nevertheless, the Company did not
recognize an expected losses provision for notes receivable due to the estimation performed by the
Company at the end of the reporting period, which shows that there was no significant change in the
credit quality of the receivables and the amounts were still considered recoverable.

The following table details the loss allowance of notes receivable based on the Company’s provision
matrix.

December 31, 2020

Up to 61 to 120 121 to 180 Over 180
Not Past Due 60 Days Days Days Days Total

Expected credit loss

rate - - - - -
Gross carrying amount $ 1,934 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,934
Loss allowance

(Lifetime ECL) - - - - - -
Amortized cost $ 1934 $ - $ - $ - b - $ 1934
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b. Trade receivables

In order to minimize credit risk, the sales department monitors payment collection regularly to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Company reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate allowance is made for possible irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management believes
the Company’s credit risk was significantly reduced.

The Company applies the simplified approach to provisions for expected credit losses prescribed by
IFRS 9, which permits the use of a lifetime expected losses provision for all trade receivables. The
expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience with the respective debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position,
adjusted for the general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtor operates and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecasted direction of economic conditions at the
reporting date. The provision for losses based on the past due status of receivables is further
distinguished by domestic customers and foreign customers. Nevertheless, the Company did not
recognize an expected losses provision for trade receivables due to the estimation performed by the
Company at the end of the reporting period, which shows that there was no significant change in the
credit quality of the receivables and the amounts were still considered recoverable.

The following table details the loss allowance of trade receivables based on the Company’s provision
matrix.

December 31, 2020

Up to 61 to 120 121 to 180 Over 180
Not Past Due 60 Days Days Days Days Total
Expected credit loss
rate - - - - -
Gross carrying amount $ 12,419 $ - $ - 3 - 3 - $ 12,419
Loss allowance
(Lifetime ECL) - - - - - -
Amortized cost $ 12419 $ - $ - b - $ - $.12419
December 31, 2019
Up to 61 to 120 121 to 180 Over 180
Not Past Due 60 Days Days Days Days Total
Expected credit loss
rate - - - - -
Gross carrying amount $ 15,210 $ 2,974 $ - $ - 3 - $ 18,184
Loss allowance
(Lifetime ECL) - - - - - -
Amortized cost $ 15210 $ 2974 3 - $ - $ - 18,184

c. Other receivables

When there is objective evidence that other receivables are impaired, the Company assesses impairment
loss on other receivables individually.

There were no past due other receivables for which the Company had not recognized an allowance for
impairment loss.
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9. INVENTORIES

10.

December 31
2020 2019

Parts 3 - s -

The cost of inventories recognized as cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2020 was
$25,566,106 thousand, which included warranty costs of $186,235 thousand and losses on inventory
purchase commitments of $11,177 thousand. The cost of inventories recognized as cost of goods sold for
the year ended December 31, 2019 was $27,650,385 thousand, which included warranty costs of $127,708
thousand and losses on inventory purchase commitments of $10,797 thousand.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

December 31
2020 2019

Investment in subsidiary

Yi-Jan Overseas Investment Co., Ltd. $ 17,864,822 $ 17.548.758

At the end of the reporting period, the proportion of ownership and voting rights in the subsidiary was as
follows:

Proportion of Ownership and
Voting Rights
December 31

2020 2019

Yi-Jan Overseas Investment Co., Ltd. 1 100% 100%
Refer to Table 5 for the details of the subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company.

The investments in subsidiaries accounted for using the equity method and the share of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of those investments for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was
based on the subsidiaries’ financial statements which have been audited for the same years.

On January 28, 2019, the board of directors of the Company approved to increase the shareholding in the
indirect investment in Guangzhou Aeolus Automobile Co., Ltd. On April 29, 2019, Jetford Inc. approved to
increase the shareholding in the investment in Guangzhou Aeolus Automobile Co., Ltd. by RMB272,565
thousand (NT$1,170,977 thousand). On August 31, 2019, the Company subscribed for additional new
shares at a percentage different from its existing ownership percentage, and increased its interest from 40%
to 42.69%, and debited retained earnings by $195,962 thousand.

On January 28, 2019, the board of directors of the Company approved to dispose of the shareholdings in the
indirect investment in Aeolus Automobile Co., Ltd., Dong Feng Yulon Used Cars Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen
Lan You Technology Co., Ltd. On April 29, 2019, Jetford Inc. approved to dispose of the shareholdings in
the investment in Aeolus Automobile Co., Ltd., Dong Feng Yulon Used Cars Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Lan
You Technology Co., Ltd. at the price of RMB7,424 thousand, RMB156,177 thousand and RMB108,964
thousand, respectively, or total of RMB272,565 thousand (NT$1,170,977 thousand). The dates of the
transactions were August 31, 2019, August 31, 2019 and September 30, 2019, respectively.
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This transaction resulted in the recognition of a gain in profit or loss, calculated as follows:

USS NT$
Proceeds of disposal $ 38,492 $ 1,170,977
Plus: Capital surplus transferred to profit or loss 4,813 140,437
Less: Carrying amount of investment on the date of loss of

significant influence (23,686) (742,674)

Less: Share of other comprehensive income of the associate (3,529) (110,189)
Less: Tax expense in China from equity transaction (1.690) (51.116)

14,400 407,435
Deferred gain on disposal of investment (1,599) (47,927)
Foreign exchange differences - 36,196

Gain recognized $ 12,801 § 395704

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computer Other Transportation Machinery and L hold
Molds Dies Equip t Equip Equip t Equip Improvements Tools Total
Cost
Balance at January 1,
2019 $ 3,571,240 $ 676.081 $  Bl664 $ 181753 $ 19,612 s 4350 s 4393 3 6,662 $ 4,545,755
Additions 363.778 126,733 2,399 55.707 - - 23,995 2,093 574,705
Disposals (275.521) (52,244) (19.433) (4.205) (8.047) (629) - (225) (360,304)

Balance at
December 31, 2015 $ 3.659.497 $ 750570 3 64.630 $__233.255 3 11.565 3 3721 3 28,388 by 8,530 $.4.760.156

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

Balance at January 1,

2019 $ (2.128.804) $ (410.601) $  (67.361) § (123.428) 13 (9.599) s (4.058) 3 (3.002) 3 (5.702) 3 (2,752.555)
Depreciation expenses (343.277) (60.073) (5.668) (16.030) (2.394) (132) (2.668) (303) (430.545)
Disposals 275,521 52,244 19.433 4205 4,967 629 - 225 357.224
Balance at

December 31, 2019 $(2.196.560) . (418.430) §  (53.596) 5_(135.253) 3 (7.026) 3 (3.561) $ (5.670) 3 {5.780) $(2.825.876)
Carrying amount, net,

December 31, 2019 $_1.462.937 § 332,140 3 11.034 3 98.002 3 4.539 3 160 5. 22718 b 2.750 §.1.934.280

Cost

Balance at January 1.

2020 $ 3.659.497 $ 750,570 $ 64,630 $ 233255 3 11,565 3 3,721 § 28388 s 8,530 $ 4.760.156
Additions 442,498 106,322 2832 16.383 - - - 350 568,425
Reclassification - - - 788 - - - - 788
Disposals (1.171.669) (215.928) (360) - (1,125) - (4.393) - (1.393,475)
Reversal (2,549) - - - - - - - (2.549)
Balance at

December 31, 2020 3 2.927.777 $__640.964 § 67102 S _250.426 b 10.440 b 3721 & 23995 3 8.920 5 3,933,345

Accumulated
depreciation and
_ impairment ____

Balance at January |,

2020 $ (2,196,560) $ (418.430) 3 (53.596) $ (135253) 3 (7.026) 3 (3.561) $ (5.670) 3 (5.780) $ (2.825.876)
Depreciation expenses (459.213) (83.571) (4.615) (16572) (1.540) (34) (5.312) (422) (571.279)
Disposals 1,171,669 215,928 360 - 938 - 4,393 - 1,393,288
Balance at

December 31,2020 §(1484.104) § (86073) §_ (57851) S _(I51825) S (7628) §__(3595) & (6589) §  (6.202)  8.(2.003.867)

Carrying amount, net,

December 31, 2020 $..1.443.673 3§ 354891 3 9.251 $.. 98,601 3 2.812 3 126 3 17.406 3 2,718 $ 1929478

The above reversal is the reduction of cost of molds.

There were no signs of impairment losses of assets for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019;
therefore, the Company did not assess for impairment.
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Except for molds and dies which are depreciated on the basis of the estimated number of vehicles to be
sold, other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful

lives as follows:

Computer equipment
Other equipment
Powered equipment
Experimental equipment
Office and communication equipment
Other equipment
Transportation equipment
Machinery and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Tools

12. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

a. Right-of-use assets

Carrying amount

Buildings
Transportation equipment

Additions to right-of-use assets

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets
Buildings
Transportation equipment

3 to 5 years

15 years

3 to 8 years
3 years

1 to 10 years
4 to 5 years
3 to 10 years
5 years

2 to 5 years

December 31

2020 2019

$ 673,170 § 716,970
10,485 12.973

3 683,655 $ 729,943

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
$ 14014 $ 7,969
$ 51,139 $ 49,714

8.580 8,037

$ 59719 $ 57,751

Except for the aforementioned addition and recognized depreciation, the Company did not have
significant sublease or impairment of right-of-use assets during the years ended December 31, 2020 and

2019.

b. Lease liabilities

Carrying amount

Current
Non-current

December 31

2020 2019

$ 51,616 $_ 54,190
§ 630,505 $ 670,159



The discount rates for lease liabilities were as follows:

December 31
2020 2019
Buildings 0.91% 0.91%
Transportation equipment 0.91% 0.91%

¢. Material leasing activities and terms

The Company leases certain cars for the use of its executives with lease terms of 2 to 4 years. The
Company does not have bargain purchase options to acquire the leasehold cars at the end of the lease
terms.

The Company also leases buildings for the use of plants, offices and dormitory with lease terms of 5 to
18 years. If the lease term is not specified in the lease contract with the related party, lease term is based
on the useful lives of the right-of-use assets, please refer to Note 27. The Company does not have
bargain purchase options to acquire the leasehold buildings at the end of the lease terms.

d. Other lease information

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 3041 $ 10,201
Total cash outflow for leases 8 (65177) $ (70,693)

The Company’s leases of certain transportation equipment qualify as short-term leases. The Company
has elected to apply the recognition exemption and thus, did not recognize right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for these leases.

13. COMPUTER SOFTWARE

Amount
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 35,256
Additions 7,201
Disposals (1,736)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 40,721
Accumulated amortization
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ (10,104)
Amortization expenses (10,183)
Disposals 1,736
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ (18,551)
Carrying amount at December 31, 2019 $ 22170

(Continued)
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14.

15.

Cost

Balance at January 1, 2020
Additions

Disposals

Reclassification

Balance at December 31, 2020

Accumulated amortization

Balance at January 1, 2020
Amortization expenses
Disposals

Balance at December 31, 2020

Carrying amount at December 31, 2020

Amount

$ 40,721
15,464
(4,764)
28,125

$ 79,546

$ (18,551)
(25,877)
4,764

$ (39.664)

$ 39,882
(Concluded)

There were no signs of impairment losses of assets for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019;
therefore, the Company did not assess for impairment.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Refundable deposits (Note 27)
Prepayments for equipment
Others

OTHER PAYABLES

Advertising and promotion fees

Salaries and bonuses
Purchases of equipment
Taxes

Others

-27 -

December 31
2020 2019
$ 565,838 $ 3,466
57,148 40,392
- 28.913

$ 622,986 § 72,771

December 31
2020 2019
$ 512,940 $ 550,213
191,446 280,765
76,691 -
12,868 30,033
61,480 63.907

§ 855425 $ 924918



16. PROVISIONS

17.

Current
Inventory purchase commitments
Warranties

Non-current
Warranties

Balance at January 1, 2019
Additional provisions recognized
Paid

Balance at December 31, 2019
Balance at January 1, 2020
Additional provisions recognized

Paid

Balance at December 31, 2020

Inventory
Purchase

Commitments

§ 97,762
10,797

$ 108,559

§ 108,559
11,177

$ 119,736

December 31

2020 2019
$ 119,736 $ 108,559
99,246 82,682
218,982 191,241
71,330 60,559

Warranties Total
$ 151,751 $ 249,513
127,708 138,505
(136,218) (136,218)
$ 143241 $ 251,800
$ 143241 $ 251,800
186,235 197,412
(158.900) (158.900)
$ 170,576 $ 290312

The provisions for losses on inventory purchase commitments represent the present obligations of which
the unavoidable costs for meeting the obligations under the commitments exceed the economic benefits

expected to be received from the commitments.

The provisions for warranty claims represent the present value of management’s best estimate of the future
outflow of economic benefits that will be required under the Company’s obligations for warranties under
the local sale of goods legislation. The estimate had been made on the basis of historical warranty trends.

OTHER LIABILITIES

Current
Withholding
Others
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December 31
2020 2019
$ 3,056 $ 3,173

1,308 1.434
$_ 4364 34607



18. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
a. Defined contribution plan

The Company adopted a pension plan under the Labor Pension Act (LPA), which is a state-managed
defined contribution plan. Under the LPA, an entity makes monthly contributions to employees’
individual pension accounts at 6% of monthly salaries and wages.

The total expense recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was
$15,390 thousand and $15,332 thousand, respectively, represents contributions payable to these plans
by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

An analysis by function of the amounts recognized in profit or loss in respect of the defined
contribution plan is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Selling and marketing expenses § 7,522 § 5,600
General and administrative expenses 3,000 4,841
Research and development expenses 4,818 4,799
Non-operating expenses 50 92
$ 15,390 $§ 15332

b. Defined benefit plan

The defined benefit plan adopted by the Company in accordance with the Labor Standards Act is
operated by the government. Pension benefits are calculated on the basis of the length of service and
average monthly salaries of the 6 months before retirement. The Company contributes amounts equal to
2% of total monthly salaries and wages to a pension fund administered by the pension fund monitoring
committee. Pension contributions are deposited in the Bank of Taiwan in the committee’s name. Before
the end of each year, the Company assesses the balance in the pension fund. If the amount of the
balance in the pension fund is inadequate to pay retirement benefits for employees who conform to
retirement requirements in the next year, the Company is required to fund the difference in one
appropriation that should be made before the end of March of the next year. The pension fund is
managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor (“the Bureau™); the Company has no right to
influence the investment policy and strategy.

The amounts included in the balance sheets in respect of the Company’s defined benefit plans were as

follows:
December 31
2020 2019
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation $ 406,889 $ 483,850
Fair value of plan assets (270,093) (251.825)
Deficit $ 136,796 $ 232025
Net defined benefit liabilities $ 136,796 $ 232025
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Movements in net defined benefit liabilities were as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2019
Service cost
Current service cost
Net interest expense (income)
Recognized in profit or loss
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest)
Actuarial loss - changes in demographic
assumptions
Actuarial loss - changes in financial
assumptions
Actuarial gain - experience adjustments
Recognized in other comprehensive income
Contributions from the employer
Benefits paid
Payment from the employer

Balance at December 31, 2019

Balance at January 1, 2020
Service cost
Current service cost
Net interest expense (income)
Recognized in profit or loss
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest)
Actuarial loss - changes in financial
assumptions
Actuarial gain - experience adjustments
Recognized in other comprehensive income
Contributions from the employer
Benefits paid
Payment from the employer

Balance at December 31, 2020

Present Value
of the Defined
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Benefit
Obligation

$ 545,797

4,667
5,444

10,111

103

11,219

(16,523)
(5.201)

(9,553)
(57.304)
$ 483850

$ 483.850

3,695

3,629

7.324

9,520
(108)

9.412

(18.268)
(75,429)

$ 406,889

Fair Value of
the Plan Assets

$ (215.916)

(2,186)
(2.180)

(7,936)

(7,938)
(35.346)

9.553

$ (251,825)
$ (251.825)

(1,983.)
(1,983)

(8,048)

(8.048)
(26.505)
18,268

$ (270,093)

Net Defined

Benefit
Liabilities
(Assets)

§ 329881

4,667

3.264

7,931

(7,936)
103

11,219

(16.523)
(13,137)
(35,346)

(57.304)
$ 232,025
$ 232,025

3,695

1,646

5,341

(8,048)

9,520
(108)

1,364

(26,505)

(75.429)
$ 136,796



An analysis by function of the amounts recognized in profit or loss in respect of the defined benefit
plans is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Selling and marketing expenses $ 1,791 $ 2,664
General and administrative expenses 2,127 2,416
Research and development expenses 1,294 2,725
Non-operating expenses 129 126

$ 5341 $§ 7931

Through the defined benefit plans under the Labor Standards Act, the Company is exposed to the
following risks:

1) Investment risk: The plan assets are invested in domestic and foreign equity and debt securities,
bank deposits, etc. The investment is conducted at the discretion of the Bureau or under the
mandated management. However, in accordance with relevant regulations, the return generated by
plan assets should not be below the interest rate for a 2-year time deposit with local banks.

2) Interest risk: A decrease in the government/corporate bond interest rate will increase the present
value of the defined benefit obligation; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the
return on the plan’s debt investments.

3) Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to the
future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will
increase the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

The actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out by
qualified actuaries. The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as
follows:

December 31
2020 2019
Discount rate(s) 0.50% 0.75%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 2.50% 2.50%

If possible reasonable change in each of the significant actuarial assumptions will occur and all other
assumptions will remain constant, the present value of the defined benefit obligation would increase
(decrease) as follows:

December 31
2020 2019

Discount rate(s)

0.25% increase $ (9,520) $(11,219)

0.25% decrease $ 93852 $ 11614
Expected rate(s) of salary increase

0.25% increase $ 9490 $ 11,218

0.25% decrease $§ (9,222) $ (10,896)
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The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in
isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

December 31
2020 2019
The expected contributions to the plan for the next year $ 6,480 $ 25314
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation 9.7 years 9.5 years
19. EQUITY
a. Capital surplus
December 31
2020 2019
Excess from spin-off $ 5,986,507 $ 5,986,507
Generated from investments accounted for using the equity
method 2,461 2461

$ 5,988,968 $ 5,988,968

The capital surplus arising from shares issued in excess of par (including excess from spin-off) may be
used to offset a deficit; in addition, when the Company has no deficit, such capital surplus may be
distributed as cash dividends or transferred to capital stock (limited to a certain percentage of the
Company’s capital surplus and to once a year).

The capital surplus from investments accounted for using the equity method may not be used for any
purpose.

Retained earnings and dividend policy

Under the dividend policy as set forth in the amended Articles, where the Company made a profit in a
fiscal year, the profit shall be first utilized for paying taxes, offsetting losses of previous years, setting
aside as legal reserve 10% of the remaining profit, setting aside or reversing special reserve in
accordance with the laws and regulations, and then any remaining profit together with any undistributed
retained earnings shall be used by the Company’s board of directors as the basis for proposing a
distribution plan, which should be resolved in the stockholders’ meeting for the distribution of
dividends and bonus to stockholders. For the policies on the distribution of compensation of employees
after the amendment, refer to Note 21-e. on compensation of employees.

The Company operates in a mature and stable industry. In determining the distribution of dividends, the
Company considers factors such as the impact of dividends on reported profitability, cash required for
future operations, any potential changes in the industry, interest of the stockholders and the effect on the
of Company’s financial ratios. The amount of dividends, which can be cash dividends or stock
dividends, is formulated to be less than 90% of net income, though the final issued ratios would be
proposed and approved by the board of directors. Cash dividends should be at least 20% of total
dividends to be distributed to the stockholders.

Under Rule No. 1010012865 issued by the FSC and the directive titled “Questions and Answers for

Special Reserves Appropriated Following Adoption of IFRSs”, the Company should appropriate or
reverse to a special reserve.
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Appropriation of earnings to the legal reserve shall be made until the legal reserve equals the
Company’s capital surplus. The legal reserve may be used to offset deficit. If the Company has no
deficit and the legal reserve has exceeded 25% of the Company’s capital surplus, the excess may be
transferred to capital or distributed in cash.

The appropriations of earnings for 2019 and 2018 approved in the stockholders’ meetings on June 19,
2020 and June 28, 2019, respectively, were as follows:

Appropriation of Earnings Dividends Per Share (NT$)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2019 2018 2019 2018
Legal reserve $ 721,812 $ 589,005
Special reserve 106,937 - ‘
Cash dividends 6,381,000 5,301,000 $21.27 $17.67
20. REVENUE
a. Contract balances
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 January 1,2019
Notes receivable (Note 8) $ 1934 hY - b -
Notes receivable - related parties (Note 27) $ 579 $ 4732 h) 513
Trade receivables (Note 8) $ 12419 $ 18,184 § 31.340

Trade receivables - related parties (Note 27) $ 389371 $ 426,488 $§ 724,150

Contract liabilities
Designing and performing R&D of cars

(Note 27) 3 - $ 33,029 $ 50,553
Contract liabilities - current - 33,029 50,553
Designing and performing R&D of cars

(Note 27) - - 22.487
Contract liabilities - non-current - - 22.487

3 - $ 33,029 5 73,040

The changes in the contract liability balances primarily result from the timing difference between the
Company’s satisfaction of performance obligations and the customer’s payment.

Revenue recognized in the current year from the satisfaction of performance obligations of contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
From contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
Designing and performing R&D of cars $ 33,029 $ 40,011
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b. Disaggregation of revenue

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Vehicles § 25,665,022 $ 28,312,770
Parts 3,776,022 3,832,416
Others 219,594 353421

$ 29,660,638 $ 32,498,607

c. Partially completed contracts

The performance obligations that are not fully satisfied and the expected timing for recognition of
revenue are as below.

December 31
2020 2019
Designing and performing R&D of cars
-in 2020 $ - $ 33,029

21. NET PROFIT
a. Other operating income and expenses

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment $ 289 $ 2491

b. Depreciation and amortization

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
An analysis of depreciation by function
Operating costs $ 542,784 § 403,350
Operating expenses 88,214 84,946

$ 630,998 $ 488,296

An analysis of amortization by function
Operating costs $ 15,990 $ -
Operating expenses 9,887 10,183

$ 25,877 § 10,183

c. Remuneration for technical services

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Operating costs (Note 27) $ 508,615 $ 564,624
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Remuneration for technical services are the payments made by the Company for technical cooperation
agreements.

Employee benefits expense

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Post-employment benefits (Note 18)
Defined contribution plans $ 15390 § 15332
Defined benefit plans 5,341 7.931
20,731 23263
Labor and health insurance 38,986 39,220
Salary 472,215 512,222
Remuneration of directors 13,200 13,200
Other employee benefits 51,261 51,514
575,662 616,156
Total employee benefits expense 3 596,393 § 639419
An analysis of employee benefits expense by function
Operating expenses $ 596,214 $ 639,201
Non-operating expenses 179 218

596,393 639419

Compensation of employees
The Company accrued compensation of employees at the rates no less than 0.1% of net profit before
income tax, and compensation of employees. The compensation of employees for the years ended

December 31, 2020 and 2019, which have been approved by the Company’s board of directors on
March 23, 2021 and March 24, 2020, respectively, were as follows:

Accrual rate

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Compensation of employees 0.10% 0.10%
Amount
For the Year Ended December 31
2020 2019
Cash Cash
Compensation of employees $§ 8,169 § 9,121

If there is a change in amounts after the annual financial statements were authorized for issue, the
differences are recorded as a change in accounting estimate.

There was no difference between the actual amounts of compensation of employees paid and the
amounts recognized in the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Information on the compensation of employees resolved by the Company’s board of directors in 2021
and 2020 is available at the Market Observation Post System website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
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f. Gain on foreign currency exchange, net

For the Year Ended December 31

2020
Foreign exchange gains $ 196,506
Foreign exchange losses (137.93%)
Net profit $ 58,568

g. Gain or loss on disposal of investments, net

2019

$ 92,094
(9.446)

§ 82,648

For the Year Ended December 31

2020
Gain on disposal of investments $ 7,607
Loss on disposal of investments (13.,084)
Net profit (loss) $ (547D

22. INCOME TAXES
a. Income tax recognized in profit or loss

The major components of tax expense were as follows:

2019

$ 13,391
(3.576)

$ 9815

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019

Current tax

In respect of the current year $ 1,519,929 $ 1,389,210

Income tax on unappropriated earnings 419 1,477

Adjustments for prior years (10,235) 8,549
Deferred tax

In respect of the current year 109.919 431,134
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $ 1,620,032 $ 1,830,370

A reconciliation of accounting profit and income tax expenses is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Profit before tax $ 8,160,970 $ 9,112,267
Income tax expense calculated at the statutory rate $ 1,632,194 $ 1,822,453
Adjustments of expenses in determining taxable income 2,361 2,159
Tax-exempt income 4,707) (4,268)
Income tax on unappropriated earnings 419 1,477
Adjustments for prior years’ tax (10,235) 8.549
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $ 1,620,032 $ 1,830,370
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b. Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiary accounted
for using the equity method $ 4 $ 10
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 273 (2,627)
Recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) $ 277 $ (261D

c. Installment payments of income tax

Due to impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company applied to the National Taxation Bureau for
the payment of its income tax for the year 2019 in 36 equal installments on a monthly basis starting
from July 2020 in accordance with Rule No. 10904533690 issued by the Ministry of Finance (MOF) of
the Republic of China, and recognized the outstanding balance of $230,327 thousand as income tax
liabilities - current and of $349,455 thousand as income tax liabilities - non-current based on the
classification of current and non-current liabilities.

d. Current tax assets and liabilities

December 31
2020 2019

Current tax liabilities

Income tax payable $ 1,328,301 $ 706,161

e. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
The movements of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities were as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Recognized in

Other
Opening Recognized in  Comprehen- Closing
Balance Profit or Loss sive Income Balance

Deferred tax assets

Temporary differences

Defined benefit obligation $ 66,308 $  (16,942) $ 2,627) § 46,739
Provisions for warranties 30,351 (1,703) - 28,648
Provisions for loss on

inventory purchase

commitments 19,553 2,159 - 21,712
Unrealized exchange loss,

net - 9,706 - 9,706
Share of other

comprehensive loss of

subsidiaries accounted for

using the equity method 112 - 10 122

§ 116324 $ (6,780) § 2,617y § 106,927
(Continued)
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Recognized in

Other
Opening Recognizedin  Comprehen- Closing
Balance Profit or Loss sive Income Balance
Deferred tax liabilities
Temporary differences
Shares of profit of
subsidiaries $ 1,894,193 $ 435971 $ - $ 2,330,164
Unrealized exchange gain,
net 11,617 (11,617 - -
$ 1,905.810 § 424354 $ - $§ 2.330,164
(Concluded)
For the year ended December 31, 2020
Recognized in
Other
Opening Recognizedin  Comprehen- Closing
Balance Profit or Loss sive Income Balance
Deferred tax assets
Temporary differences
Defined benefit obligation $ 46,739 §  (19,319) $ 273 $ 27,693
Provisions for warranties 28,648 5,467 - 34,115
Provisions for loss on
inventory purchase
commitments 21,712 2,235 - 23,947
Unrealized exchange loss,
net 9,706 (9,706) - -
Share of other
comprehensive loss of
subsidiaries accounted for
using the equity method 122 - 4 126
$ 106,927 §  (21.323) $ 277 3 85,881
Deferred tax liabilities
Temporary differences
Shares of profit of
subsidiaries $ 2,330,164 $ 74,737 $ - $ 2,404,901
Unrealized exchange gain,
net - 13,859 - 13,859
$§ 2,330,164 $ 88,596 $ - $ 2.418,760

Income tax assessments

The Company’s tax returns through 2018 have been assessed by the tax authorities.
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23. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The earnings and weighted-average number of common stock outstanding used in the computation of
earnings per share were as follows:

Net Profit for the Year

For the Year Ended December 31
2020 2019

Earnings used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per

share $ 6,540,938 $ 7,281,897

Weighted-average Number of Common Stock Outstanding (In Thousands of Shares)

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Weighted average number of common stock used in the computation
of basic earnings per share 300,000 300,000
Effect of potential dilutive common stock:
Compensation of employees 27 23
Weighted average number of common stock used in the computation
of diluted earnings per share 300,027 300,023

Since the Company offered to settle the compensation of employees in cash or stocks, the Company
assumed the entire amount of the compensation would be settled in stocks and the resulting potential stocks
were included in the weighted average number of stocks outstanding used in the computation of diluted
earnings per share, as the effect is dilutive. Such dilutive effect of the potential stocks is included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share until the number of stocks to be distributed to employees is
resolved in the following year.

24. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

a. Non-cash transactions

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company entered into the following non-cash
investing activities:

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019

Investing activities affecting both cash and non-cash transactions

Increase in property, plant and equipment $ 568,425 § 574,705
Net changes of prepayment for equipment 20,262 (5,543)
Net changes of trade payables (122,768) 167.649
Cash paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment $ 465919 $ 736,811
Increase in computer software $ 15,464 § 7,201
Net changes of prepayment for equipment (3.506) -
Cash paid for acquisition of computer software $ 11958 § 7201
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b. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2020
Opening Leases December 31,
Balance Cash Flows New Leases Terminated 2020
Lease liabilities § 724,349 $_(55,658) $ 14014 $ (584) $ 682,121
019
Opening Leases December 31,
Balance Cash Flows New Leases Terminated 2019
Lease liabilities $ 769,993 $ (53.613) $ 7,969 3 - $ 724349

25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximizing the return to stockholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Fair value of financial instruments that are not measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
are approximately equal to their fair values.

b. Fair value of financial instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
1) Fair value hierarchy

December 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Mutual funds $ 626,514 3 - 3 - § 626514
December 31, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Mutual funds § 1,251,525 $ - $ - $ 1,251,525
Trade receivables - related
parties - - 34,371 34,371
$ 1251,525 $ - $ 34,371 § 1,285,896

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the current and prior periods.
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C.

2) Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purpose of fair value measurement

The fair value of mutual funds traded on active market is the net asset value on the balance sheet
date. If there is no market price, the fair value is determined by the redemption value. The estimates
and assumptions used by the Company were consistent with those that market participants would
use in setting a price for the financial instrument.

For trade receivables - related parties that are measured at FVTPL and have a 4-day credit period,
the fair value is measured according to the original invoice amount and the effect of discounting is

immaterial.

Categories of financial instruments

December 31
2020 2019
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Mandatorily at FVTPL $ 626,514 $ 1,285,896
Financial assets at amortized cost (Note 1) 5,911,084 5,698,619
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost (Note 2) 1,037,979 1,264,205

Note 1:  The balances included financial assets measured at amortized cost, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents, notes receivable, part of trade receivables and other receivables.

Note 2: The balances included financial liabilities measured at amortized cost, which comprise trade
payables and part of other payables.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s major financial instruments include trade receivables, trade payables and borrowings.
The Company’s corporate treasury function coordinates access to domestic and international financial
markets, manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk
reports which analyze exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

1) Market risk

The Company’s activities exposed it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and other prices.

There had been no change to the Company’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which these
risks were managed and measured. Sensitivity analysis evaluates the impact of a reasonably
possible change in interest or foreign currency rates over a year. Details of the sensitivity analysis
for foreign currency risk and for interest rate risk are set out in (a) and (b) below.

a) Foreign currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are set out in Note 29.
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b)

Sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposed to the RMB, U.S. dollar and Japanese yen.

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the
functional currency against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis included only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A negative number below indicates a decrease in pre-tax profit associated with
the functional currency weakening 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% strengthening of
the functional currency against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on pre-tax profit and the balances below would be positive.

RMB U.S. Dollar Japanese Yen
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Loss $(229,311) $(174,677) % (21,769) $ (14,563) § (383) $ (1,185

These were mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding RMB, U.S. dollar and Japanese
yen denominated cash in bank, repurchase agreements collateralized by bonds, receivables and
payables, which were not hedged at the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate risk

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities with exposure
to interest rates at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

December 31
2020 2019
Fair value interest rate risk
Financial assets $ 3,648,214 $ 2,597,391
Financial liabilities 682,121 724,349
Cash flows interest rate risk
Financial assets 1,686,566 2,453,887

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below were determined based on the Company’s exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. A 25 basis point increase
or decrease was used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Company’s pre-tax profit for the years ended December 31, 2020 would increase/decrease
by $4,216 thousand, which was mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates
on its demand deposits and time deposits.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Company’s pre-tax profit for the years ended December 31, 2019 would increase/decrease
by $6,135 thousand, which was mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates
on its demand deposits and time deposits.
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c) Other price risk
The Company was exposed to price risk through its investments in funds. The Company
manages this exposure by investing in a diversified a portfolio of investments with different

risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below was determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
end of the reporting period.

If the fund’s value had been 1% higher/lower, pre-tax profit for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019 would have been higher/lower by $6,265 thousand and $12,515 thousand,
respectively, as a result of the changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL.

Credit risk

The Company’s concentration of credit risk of 60% and 49% in total trade receivables as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, was related to the Company’s largest customer within
the vehicle department and the five largest customers within the parts department.

Liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by monitoring and maintaining a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Company’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. In addition, management monitors the utilization of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Company relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of liquidity. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, the available unutilized borrowings facilities were $5,700,000 thousand and
$3,200,000 thousand, respectively.

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturities for its non-derivative
financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables had been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities from the earliest date on which the Company can be
required to pay.

December 31, 2020

On Demand
or Less than 3 Months to ,
1 Month 1-3 Months 1 Year 1-5 Years 5+ Years
Non-derivative
financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing $ 1,028,818 § 8,796 § 365  § - 5 -
Lease liabilities 5,198 10,396 42.043 155,137 542.195

$ 1034016 $ 19.192 § 42408 § 155137 § 542,195

Additional information about the maturity analysis for lease liabilities:

Less than 1
Year 1-5 Years 5-10 Years 10-15 Years 15-20 Years 20+ Years

Lease liabilities $ 57637 $ 155,137 $ 161,385 $ 154,894 $ 110947 § 114,969
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December 31, 2019

On Demand
or Less than 3 Months to
1 Month 1-3 Months 1 Year 1-5 Years 5+ Years
Non-derivative
financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing $ 1,180,493 § 75271 % 8441 § -3 -
Lease liabilities 5,173 10,345 45.086 166.482 577,390
1,185,666 $ 85,616 $ 53,527 § 166482 $ 577,390
Additional information about the maturity analysis for lease liabilities:
Less than 1
Year 1-5 Years 5-10 Years 10-15 Years 15-20 Years 20+ Years
Lease liabilities $ 60,604 $ 166,482 $ 165,211 $ 156,843 $ 122,872 $ 132464

27. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In addition to those disclosed in other notes, the Company had business transactions with the following

related parties:
a. Related parties

Related Party

Relationship with the Company

Investors that have significant influence over the Company

Nissan Motor Corporation (“Nissa
Yulon Motor Co., Ltd. (“Yulon™)

n)’)

Equity-method investor of the Company
Same as above

Subsidiaries
Yi-Jan Overseas Investment Co., Ltd. Subsidiary
Jetford, Inc. Subsidiary of Yi-Jan Overseas Investment
Co., Ltd.
Other related parties

Nissan Trading Co., Ltd.
Nissan Trading Europe Ltd.

Nissan Trading (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Nissan Trading China Co., Ltd.
Nissan Motor Egypt S.A.E.
Nissan Import Egypt, Ltd.

PT. Nissan Motor Indonesia (“NMI”)

Nissan Mexicana, S.A. De C. V.
Nissan Motor (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

PT Nissan Motor Distributor Indonesia

Nissan North America, Inc.
Nissan International SA

Nissan Creative Service Co., Ltd.
Nissan Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Nissan Philippines Inc.
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Subsidiary of Nissan
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Substantial related party of Nissan
Same as above
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Related Party

Relationship with the Company

INFINITI Motor Co., Ltd.

Renault Nissan Automotive India Private Ltd.
Autech Japan, Inc.

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd.

Dongfeng Nissan Passenger Vehicle Co.
Shenzhen DFS Industrial Group Co., Ltd.
Zhenzhou Nissan Automobile Co., Ltd.
Allied Engineering Co., Ltd.

Chien Tai Industry Co., Ltd.

Taiwan Calsonic Co., Ltd.

Taiwan Acceptance Corporation

Yueki Industrial Co., Ltd.

Yu Pong Business Co., Ltd.

Yushin Motor Co., Ltd.

Yu Chang Motor Co., Ltd.

Ka-Plus Automobile Leasing Co., Ltd.
Yu Sing Motor Co., Ltd.

Empower Motors Co., Ltd.

Uni Auto Parts Co., Ltd.

Chan Yun Technology Co., Ltd.

Singan Co., Ltd.

Y-teks Co., Ltd.

Sinjang Co., Ltd.

Luxgen Motor Co., Ltd.

Yue Sheng Industrial Co., Ltd.

Yulon Energy Service Co., Ltd.

Yufong Property Management Co., Ltd.
Univation Motor Philippines, Inc.
China Ogihara Corporation

Yuan Lon Motor Co., Ltd.

Chen Long Co., Ltd.

Yulon Management Co., Ltd.

ROC Spicer Co., Ltd.

Chi Ho Corporation

Yu Tang Motor Co., Ltd.

Tokio Marine Newa Insurance Co., Ltd.

Hua-Chuang Automobile Information Technical Center

Co., Ltd.
Taiway, Ltd.
Kian Shen Corporation
Hui-Lian Motor Co., Ltd.
Le-Wen Co., Ltd.
Visionary International Consulting Co., Ltd.
Tai Yuen Textile Co., Ltd.
San Long Industrial Co., Ltd.
China Motor Corporation
Sin Etke Technology Co., Ltd.

Singgual Technology Co., Ltd.

Hsiang Shou Enterprise Co., Ltd.
Hong Shou Culture Enterprise Co., Ltd.
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Substantial related party of Nissan
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Subsidiary of Yulon
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Sub-subsidiary of Yulon
Substantial related party of Yulon
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above
Same as above

Same as above

Same as above

Same as above

Same as above

Same as above

Same as above

Same as above

Same as above

Subsidiary of Hua-Chuang Automobile

Information Technical Center Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of Singan Co., Ltd.

Same as above

Same as above
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Related Party

Relationship with the Company

Shinshin Credit Corporation

Yu Pool Co., Ltd.

Yu-Jan Co., Ltd.

Tang Li Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Ding Long Motor Co., Ltd.

Lian Cheng Motor Co., Ltd.

CL Skylite Trading Co., Ltd.

Yuan Jyh Motor Co., Ltd.

Yuan Rui Auto Co., Ltd.

Diamond Leasing Service Co., Ltd.

Hsieh Kuan Manpower Service Co., Ltd.

Tan Wang Co., Ltd.

Carnival Textile Industrial Corporation
Y.M. Hi-Tech Industry Ltd.

DFS Industrial Group Co., Ltd.

Luxgen Taoyuan Motor Co., Ltd.
Luxgen Taichung Motor Co., Ltd.
Luxgen Kaohsiung Motor Co., Ltd.
ROC-Keeper Industrial Ltd.

Kuen You Trading Co., Ltd.
Fengye Leasing Co., Ltd.

Euniton Enterprise Co., Ltd.

b. Related party transaction details

Subsidiary of Taiwan Acceptance
Corporation
Subsidiary of Yushin Motor Co., Ltd.
Subsidiary of Yu Sing Motor Co., Ltd.
Subsidiary of Yu Tang Motor Co., Ltd.
Subsidiary of Chen Long Co., Ltd.
Same as above
Sub-subsidiary of Chen Long Co., Ltd.
Subsidiary of Yuan Lon Motor Co., Ltd.
Same as above
Subsidiary of Ka-Plus Automobile
Leasing Co., Ltd.
Subsidiary of Diamond Leasing Service
Co., Ltd.
Subsidiary of Yu Chang Motor Co., Ltd.
Substantial related party of the Company
Subsidiary of China Ogihara Corporation
Substantial related party of Dongfeng
Nissan Passenger Vehicle Co.
Subsidiary of Luxgen Motor Co., Ltd.
Same as above
Same as above
Subsidiary of ROC Spicer Co., Ltd.
Investee of Yu Sing Motor Co., Ltd.
Subsidiary of CL Skylite Trading Co., Ltd.
Substantial related party of Empower
Motors Co., Ltd.
(Concluded)

Balances and transactions between the Company and related parties are based on agreements. Details of
transactions between the Company and its related parties were disclosed below:

1) Operating transactions

Sales
Taiwan Acceptance Corporation

Investors that have significant influence
Other related parties

Service revenue

Nissan
Autech Japan, Inc.

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
$ 25,612,672 $ 28,264,976
10,536 10,433
3.454.454 3,441,369
$ 29,077,662 $ 31,716,778
$ 82,158 $ 229,304
36,917 40,011
$ 119,075 $ 269,315




The Company designs and performs R&D of cars mainly for Nissan and Autech Japan, Inc. Service
revenue is recognized according to the related contracts.

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Other operating revenue
Yulon $ 22,399 $ 21,393
Other related parties 72,344 52,792

$ 94,743 $ 74,185

Other operating revenue mainly arose from the sale of steel plates, steel and aluminum parts and the
export of test vehicles.

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Operating costs - purchases
Yulon $ 23,797,486 $ 26,193,544
Investors that have significant influence 29,581 23,439
Other related parties 20,228 34,520

§ 23,847,295 $ 26,251,503

Operating costs - remuneration for technical services

Nissan $ 451,254 $ 485,935
Autech Japan, Inc. 57,361 78,689

$ 508,615 $ 564,624

Remuneration for technical services is the payment for technical services provided by Nissan and
Autech Japan, Inc. based on the Company’s technical cooperation agreements with the two
companies. The remuneration for technical services provided by Nissan is calculated based on the
purchase costs less commodity tax of each vehicle model, while the remuneration for technical
services provided by Autech Japan, Inc. is calculated based on the R&D fees of each vehicle model
plus the royalty fees of each vehicle sold.

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019

Operating costs - parts development cost

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd. $ 163,635 s -
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The parts development cost represents the expenses for parts jointly developed by the Company and

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd.

Selling and marketing expenses

Yu Chang Motor Co., Ltd.

Yu Sing Motor Co., Ltd.

Empower Motors Co., Ltd.

Investors that have significant influence
Other related parties

General and administrative expenses

Yulon Management Co., Ltd.
Investors that have significant influence
Other related parties

Research and development expenses

Yulon
Investors that have significant influence
Other related parties

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
$ 326,581 $ 236,599
289,559 193,543
260,093 259,634
23,481 17,626
1,278,693 993.499
$ 2,178,407 § 1,700,901
$ 176,908 $ 174,687
14,262 19,667
11,464 11,543
h) 202,634 $ 205,897
$ 127,030 $ 60,484
13,353 9,598
9,578 18.108
$ 149,961 $ 88,190

Selling and marketing expenses are payments to other related parties for advertisement and

promotion.

General and administrative expenses are payments to Yulon Management Co., Ltd. for consulting,

labor dispatch and IT services.

Research and development expenses are payments for prototype fees, sample fees and for services
related to the provision of system platform research for each vehicle model.

Non-operating transactions

Other revenues

Tokio Marine Newa Insurance Co., Ltd.

QOverseas business expenses

Yulon Management Co., Ltd.
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For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
$ 500 $ 1,229
$ 4,134 $ 4,324




3) Receivables from related parties

4

December 31

2020 2019

Notes receivable
Yushin Motor Co., Ltd. $ 579 $ 146
Yuan Lon Motor Co., Ltd. - 4,586

h) 579 3 4,732
Trade receivables
Taiwan Acceptance Corporation $ 229,872 $ 252,419
Investors that have significant influence 21,332 39,454
Other related parties 138.167 134,615

$ 389,371 $ 426,488

Other receivables

Yulon $ 122,095 $ 200,598
Subsidiary 10,163 2,732
Other related parties 1,543 1,901

§ 133801 h 205,231

Other receivables from Yulon are mainly purchase discounts and commodity taxes paid by the
Company on behalf of Yulon.

Trade receivables from related parties are unsecured. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, no impairment loss was recognized on trade receivables from related parties.

As of December 31, 2019, the balance of trade receivables from related parties includes $34,371
thousand, which were sold to Taiwan Acceptance Corporation without recourse. These trade
receivable are classified as at FVTPL under IFRS 9 because the objective of the Company’s
business model is achieved by selling financial assets. Refer to Note 26 for the details.

Refundable deposits
December 31
2020 2019
Yulon $ 564,881 $ 1,770
Yu Sing Motor Co., Ltd. - 800
A 564,881 A 2,570

Refundable deposits are mainly the deposits paid by the Company to Yulon for materials.
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5) Contract liabilities

December 31

2020 2019

Autech Japan, Inc. A - $ 33,029

The Company designs and develops car models for Autech Japan, Inc. and, according to the related
contracts, receives payments before satisfying performance obligations. Those contract liabilities
are recognized as current and non-current liabilities according to the timing of revenue recognition.

6) Payables to related parties

December 31
2020 2019
Trade payables
Nissan $ 118,405 $ 135,010
Yulon 54,631 271,251
Other related parties 1,908 13,071

$ 174944 $ 419,332

Other payables

Yulon $ 35,474 $ 21,369
Nissan 4,821 5,603
Taiwan Acceptance Corporation 24,206 55,841
Other related parties 117.792 96,001

$ 182293 $ 178,814

Trade payables to related parties are unsecured. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balances of
purchases of equipment from other payables were $61,730 thousand and $2,111 thousand,
respectively.

7) Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition Price

Related Party 2020 2019

Yueki Industrial Co., Ltd. h) 28,063 $ 949
Nissan 15,695 5,447
Uni Auto Parts Co., Ltd. 7,443 1,200
Otbher related parties 21,460 10,656

3 72,661 $ 18,252
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9)

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Sales Proceeds Gain (Loss) on Disposal
Related Party 2020 2019 2020 2019
Yu sing Motor Co., Ltd. 3 - $ 5238 $ - $ 2275

Lease arrangements - the Company is lessee

Acquisition of right-of-use assets

The Company’s rental expenses paid monthly are primarily comprised of building property, car
testing expenses, cars for its executives for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Acquisition of right-of-use assets
Yulon $ - $ 766,683
Other related parties 6.676 21,011
$ 6,676 $ 787,694

The right-of-use assets acquired from January 1 to December 31, 2019 include the adjustments from
the initial application of IFRS 16 of $779,725 thousand.

If the lease term is not specified in the lease contract with Yulon, the lease term is until the date of
lease termination as agreed by both parties.

December 31
2020 2019
Lease liabilities
Yulon 3 665,652 $ 711,510

Other related parties 16,469 12.839

$ 682,121 b 724,349

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Interest expense
Yulon $ 6,330 $ 6,747
Other related parties 117 132
5 6,447 $ 6,879
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Interest expense is for lease liabilities.

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Lease expense
Yulon $ 2,526 $ 7,329
Ka-Plus Automobile Leasing Co., Ltd. - 1,656
Other related parties 515 1,216
h) 3,041 $ 10,201

Lease expenses included expenses relating to short-term leases and low-value asset leases that do
not depend on an index or a rate. Future lease payables related to short-term leases, low-value asset
leases are as follows:

December 31
2020 2019

Future lease payables h) - $ 3,088

Remuneration of key management personnel

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Short-term employee benefits $ 42,562 $ 33,935
Post-cmployment benefits 1.982 2,072

$ 44,544 $ 36,007

The remuneration of directors and key executives was determined by the remuneration committee based
on the performance of individuals and market trends.

Other transactions with related parties
1) Trade receivables sold to Taiwan Acceptance Corporation

The Company sold to Taiwan Acceptance Corporation trade receivables which amounted to
$2,039,906 thousand and $1,966,021 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had received cash payments of
$2,002,480 thousand and $1,966,021 thousand, respectively. Based on the contract, the amount of
receivables sold is limited to the amount of guarantee provided by the original debtor to Taiwan
Acceptance Corporation. Interest rate intervals of the Company’s trade receivables sold to Taiwan
Acceptance Corporation for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 were 2.33%-2.41% and
2.39%-2.41%; and the interest expenses recognized were $1,077 thousand and $1,075 thousand,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company sold trade receivables to Taiwan Acceptance Corporation

without recourse. The sale resulted in the derecognition of these trade receivables because the
Company transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to the accounts to the buyer.
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2) Molds contract signed with Diamond Leasing Service Co., Ltd.

3)

4)

5)

The contract is valid from the date of signing of the contract to the production end date of the car
model. As of December 31, 2020, the contract amount of molds still under production, which was
paid in installments based on the progress of the contract, was $1,171,354 thousand (excluding
business tax), and had been paid in full and recognized as property, plant and equipment. In
addition, within the contract period, before the end of January every year, the Company should pay
Diamond Leasing Service Co., Ltd., the amount of $2.6 for every ten thousand dollars of the
accumulated amount paid for molds in the prior year.

Molds contract signed with Shinshin Credit Corporation

The contract is valid from the date of signing of the contract to the production end date of the car
model. As of December 31, 2020, the contract amount of molds still under production, which was
paid in installments based on the progress of the contract, was $427,001 thousand (excluding
business tax), and had been paid in full and recognized as property, plant and equipment. In
addition, within the contract period, before the end of January every year, the Company should pay
Shinshin Credit Corporation the amount of $2.6 for every ten thousand dollars of the accumulated
amount paid for molds in the prior year.

Molds contract signed with Sinjang Co., Ltd.

The contract is valid from the date of signing of the contract to the production end date of the car
model. As of December 31, 2020, the contract amount of molds still under production, which was
paid in installments based on the progress of the contract, was $423,976 thousand (excluding
business tax), and had been paid in full and recognized as property, plant and equipment. In
addition, within the contract period, before the end of January every year, the Company should pay
Sinjang Co., Ltd. the amount of $2.6 for every ten thousand dollars of the accumulated amount paid
for molds in the prior year.

Molds contract signed with Chan Yun Technology Co., Ltd.

The contract is valid from the date of signing of the contract to the production end date of the car
model. As of December 31, 2020, the contract amount of molds still under production, which was
paid in installments based on the progress of the contract, was $69,360 thousand (excluding
business tax), and had been paid in full and recognized as property, plant and equipment. In
addition, within the contract period, before the end of January every year, the Company should pay
Chan Yun Technology Co., Ltd. the amount of $2.6 for every ten thousand dollars of the
accumulated amount paid for molds in the prior year.

28. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES AND UNRECOGNIZED COMMITMENTS

In addition to those disclosed in other notes, significant commitments and contingencies of the Company as
of December 31, 2020 were as follows:

a.

The Company re-signed a manufacturing contract with Yulon, effective on or after May 1, 2015, for 5
years. This contract, for which the first expiry date was on April 30, 2020, is automatically extended
annually unless either party issues a termination notice at least three months before expiry. The contract
states that the Company authorizes Yulon to manufacture Nissan automobiles and parts, and the
Company is responsible for the subsequent development of new automobile parts. The manufacturing
volume of Yulon under the contract should correspond to the Company’s sales projection for the year.
In addition, the Company has authorized Yulon as the original equipment manufacturer (OEM) of
automobile parts and after-sales service.
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The Company is responsible for developing new car models, refining designs, and providing the sales
projection to Yulon. Yulon is responsible for transforming the sales projections into manufacturing
plans, making the related materials orders and purchases, providing product quality assurance,
delivering cars, and shouldering warranty expenses due to any defects in products made by Yulon.

b. The Company has a contract with Taiwan Acceptance Corporation for sale and purchase of vehicles.
Besides, Taiwan Acceptance Corporation separately signed with dealers contracts for display of
vehicles. If any dealer violates the display contract, resulting in the need for Taiwan Acceptance
Corporation to recover the display vehicles, the Company must assist in the settlement or buy-back the
vehicles at the original price. From the date of signing the sale and purchase contract to December 31,
2020, no buy-back of vehicles has occurred.

¢. Unrecognized commitments

December 31
2020 2019
Acaquisition of property, plant, and equipment $ 5,073 $ 102,782

29. SIGNIFICANT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DENOMINATED IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The Company’s significant financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies aggregated by

the foreign currencies other than functional currencies and the related exchange rates between the foreign
currencies and the respective functional currencies were as follows:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars and Foreign Currencies)

December 31, 2020

Foreign Carrying
Currency Exchange Rate Amount
Financial assets
Monetary items
RMB $§ 1,047,800 43770 (RMB:NTD) $ 4,586,221
USbh 15,287 28.480 (USD:NTD) 435,374
IPY 27,697 0.2763 (JPY:NTD) 7,653
5,029,248
Non-monetary items
USD 627,276 28.480 (USD:NTD) $ 17,864,822
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
JPY 8 0.2763 (JPY:NTD) h 2
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December 31, 2019

Foreign Carrying
Currency Exchange Rate Amount
Financial assets
Monetary items
RMB $ 811,507 43050 (RMB:NTD) § 3,493,538
USD 9,715 29.980 (USD:NTD) 291,256
JPY 85,959 0.2760 (JPY:NTD) 23,725
$ 3808519
Non-monetary items
USD 585,349 29.980 (USD:NTD) $ 17,548,758
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
JPY 64 0.2760 (JPY:NTD) h 18

The significant realized and unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses) were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2020 2019
Net Foreign Net Foreign
Exchange Gain Exchange Gain
Foreign Currency Exchange Rate (Loss) Exchange Rate (Loss)
RMB 4.2820 (RMB:NTD) § 78,355 4.4720 (RMB:NTD) $ 80,742
USD 29.549 (USD:NTD) (19,876) 30.912 (USD:NTD) 2,475
JPY 0.2769 (JPY:NTD) 89 0.2837 (JPY:NTD) (569)
$ 58,568 $ 82,648

30. SEPARATELY DISCLOSED ITEMS

a. Information about significant transactions and investees:
1) Financing provided to others: None
2) Endorsements/guarantees provided: None
3) Marketable securities held (excluding investment in subsidiaries and associates): Table 1 (attached)

4) Marketable securities acquired or disposed of at costs or prices of at least NT$300 million or 20%
of the paid-in capital: Table 2 (attached)

5) Acquisition of individual real estate at costs of at least NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital: None

6) Disposal of individual real estate at prices of at least NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital:
None
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7) Total purchases from or sales to related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the
paid-in capital: Table 3 (attached)

8) Receivables from related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital: Table 4 (attached)

9) Trading in derivative instruments: None
10) Information on investees: Table 5 (attached)
b. Information on investments in mainland China

1) Information on any investee company in mainland China, showing the name, principal business
activities, paid-in capital, method of investment, inward and outward remittance of funds,
ownership percentage, net income or loss, investment income or loss, carrying amount of the
investment at the end of the period, repatriated investment income, and limit on the amount of
investments in the mainland China area: Table 6 (attached)

2) Any of the following significant transactions with investee companies in mainland China, either
directly or indirectly through a third area, and their prices, payment terms, and unrealized gains or

losses: None

a) The amount and percentage of purchases and the balance and percentage of the related payables
at the end of the period.

b) The amount and percentage of sales and the balance and percentage of the related receivables at
the end of the period.

¢) The amount of property transactions and the amount of the resultant gains or losses.

d) The balance of negotiable instrument endorsements or guarantees or pledges of collateral at the
end of the period and the purposes.

e) The highest balance, the end of period balance, the interest rate range, and total current period
interest with respect to financing of funds.

f) Other transactions that have a material effect on the profit or loss for the period or on the
financial position, such as the rendering or receiving of services.

¢. Information of major shareholders

List all shareholders with ownership of 5% or greater showing the name of the shareholder, the number
of shares owned, and percentage of ownership of each shareholder: Table 7 (attached).

-56 -



- L[S~

"070T ‘1€ 19quada(] JO SE anjeA JaU S, JOSSe 3YI UO paseq paje|na[es st ssoj 10 j1joid ySnolys onfea J1eJ 18 10SSE [BIOURUI) SU) JO aNjBA JIBJ 9U] 910N

£06°'C - £06'C 99 sso[ 10 Jjoxd y3noy onjeA HeJ JE $)1ISSE [EIOURUL ] - pun,j ssue[eg 7 "ON UIOO[NOH MK Yn.J

£1Z°¢ - [AVAS LLT ssoj 1o jyoid ySnony anjea nej je S19SSE [RIOUBUL] - punj 2MSNYSEIU] puR SANII[] (801D D LIS
purnj spuasy,

W0ov'11L - 0p°11 981 ssoj 10 jyjo1d ySnoxy) snfea ey je S}9sse [RIOULUL,] - 3ouaBij[o)u] uBMIE ] SI0ISIAU] [EQO]D) ZUBI]Y

00981 - 00981 008 ssof 1o jyo1d ySnoy) snjea nej je S19SSE JRIoUell - pung Annbg jeqoin winwoN

122°02 - 12202 056°1 ssof 10 31701d y3noy) onjeA Kej Je S1OSSe [RIoURU]] - puog aanemuend) NSy a8pugourd

p68°1C - ¥68°1C 296°1 ss0[ 10 1joid YInoxy} onjeA Jie] Je SJOSSE [RIOURUL] - pun,] puog Jeroueul,y [EqO]D) BINUION

865°€T - 866°€T 92C'T sso[ 40 301d yInoxyy onjeA Jiej je SJasSe [RIOURUL] - pun, swosu] paisyald [eqojO Sjnuey
puog s13a1enS

33949 - SSS'pE £IL'T s$s07 10 3g0xd y3nory) anjeA Iiej e S5)35SE [EIOURHL,] - stroed-eisy ey SuiSiowy o8pugouy
punj puog

£17'38 - £17'88 L66'S $50] 10 J301d ySnosy) anjea Jej Je SISSE [RIOURUL] - PIBLA Y81y ASajeng-niniy jeqor a8pugeulg
pung

L6L°00T - L6L°00T $6T61 ss0] 10 1g01d ySnoxyp anjeA 1ej je SJ9SSE [EIOUBUL,] - 1R Asuop weomrS uolsdurs I uIpues,|

g11'10T $ - 811107 § £SP'el sso] 10 1youd ySnoys onjea mey je s)osse [erouelt,] - pum J Jo3JejA AQUOA] uUng yif

Py ‘Aueduio)) 10J0JA] UBSSIN UOM L
mm%«w:_g diyssoumQ 3 v |(p 4L up
N 10 10353AU] Y3
310N aNfEA IIEIA Jo adejuddrag Juikiiey OIS JUNOIIY JUSHINEBIS [RIDHRUL] Wi diysuonepy SITJLINIAG d[quiauAl Jo sure) pue adLy J0)SaAU]
0707 1€ $2quddag

1I319vVL

(SIe[jo( UEBMIE ], MI)] JO Spuesnol ], uf)

0707 ‘1€ YIINIADAA

ATAH SHELRRNDAS T9VLINAVIN

"ALT ‘ANVJINOD HOLOW NVSSIN NOINX




-g¢-

“JHNOUIE JUBUNSIAU] {RUITLIO 1101 B UMOYS 910N

ssof Jo 1yod ySnoy puny 131N
- - $T6 000°00€ ST6°00€ $18'€C 000°001 816°L 000°002 968'S1 - - anjeA Ijgj ¢ SIOSSE [EIOURUL|  ASUOIN prowrelq BRI
ssof 3o 1yoid yInoay pung 1IN ASUoiy
- $ - L S 000'00€ § LTL'00E § 610°1T 000°00€ § 610'1T - $ - - - anjea 1ej T S}OSSE |ElouRUL] Suond-ey uysie] ‘pry ‘Aurduio)
JOJOJA] UBSSIN UO[N &
(spuesnoy ] ug) 1esodsy junout spuesno(l u spuesnoyJ u spuesnoy ], u
(230N) Junoury s_usm._. ! uo (sso) W_MU mn_b..m«m.u juneuty e m._uc.._m._. v junowy .FA ’ mxus_wh D yunawy e w:uo.w.r P dyysuoyepy | Aaediajune) juneny SINLNIIS AGUIHERN] aureN Auedwo)
Jduepeq Julpuy fesodsiq uonsInbyy 2Juejey suitmgag auNEg jERueug Jo awrey pur odiy

(SAB[j0( UEMIBY MIN }O SPUESNOY L U]}

T47149v.L

0707 ‘1€ HIFANIDAA AIAANT UVIA THL ¥Od
TVLIAVD NIFQIVd THL 40 %07 HO NOI'TTIA 60€SIN LSVAT LV 40 SADIUJ ¥O SIS0 LV 40 ISOdSIA Y0 dFIINOIV STLLINIAS ATV LINIYIN

‘ALT ‘ANVAINOD O.LOIW NVSSIN NOINA



- 66 -

*Aueduio) s13 Jo junoure SurA1ies oy} U0 paseq oI 2194 UMOYS Saduejeg 7 SION

‘SJUSUISAIBE U PIseq oIv SULID) UONOBSURL] ] SJON
- 1 G66°C - - sued 10j sojes 1oye sAep ]| - $18°011 s[es Suo1 uay)) jo Areipisqng P11 02 1010]q Suo] Suig
- £ el - - SA0qQe seowe§) | 8LT°€8T afes uo[n A jo Areipisqng P 40D 1010 UIYSnA
$9]914aa 10J JusurAed sjerpauruy
- I 19T'L - - sued 10§ safes 1age shep 1| | 086°L87 ajesg| uon g jyo Aued paje[ar jenueisqng ‘py1 0D Suoy usy)
- Z L60°6 - - JA0Qe Se owesg| | £TH06T sjes| uonA jo Aued pajejal [enueisqng "PIT 0D I0J0]q Sue] nA
- 4 69601 - - aaoqe se aweg| | SSLb9E ajes| uolng jo Aued pojejal [enueisqng ‘PI1 “0)) I0J0]N UBlT-InH
- ¢ £81°61 - - sped 10 sofes Jaye skep pf| | 918'69¢ ales uojn & jo AIeipisqng ‘Pr1 0D s10101A romodwig
Sa]o1yaA 10} JusuiAed sjeIpsum]
- [4 998°6 - - sued Joj sojes Joye skep 1| | 10£°49¢ ajeg uoinX jo Axeipisqng "PYT 0D JOJON Surg nx
- 4 679°1¢C - - sued 10} sajes 1aye skep 1| T [AS 2444 sfes uojn X yo Arerprsqng Pr1 02 100N Sueyl ng
sa]o1yaA 10] JuswrAed ajerpauruy
% p6L'61 - - sued 10 sajes soye skep p1| ¢ 88596 ajeg| uong jo Aued pajerar [enuesqng PYT 00 IOIO]A UOT UBn L
- 137 7L8°62C - - aaoge seaweg| /8 ZL9°T19'ST afes uo[n & jo Areipisqng| uonerodio)) sourydanoy uemie]
SJOIYaA 10} Safes Joye SAep ¢ Aueduro) Py ‘Auedwo))
- It (1£9'%5) g - - $ sued Joj sojes 1oye skep 4| g6 98y°L6LET $ aseyon 3ty Jo 103saaul poyjau-Anbgy uojnx| IOJOJA UBSSIN UOINA
T310N)
fe30], [dduejeqg Supuj {swia ] wawdeg| 21 pup surLId ] jusmiey _ﬁwk junoury les
JoN 0} 9, "% pseIng drysuoneay jo armeN £11ed paepy auwe) Aueduro)
JqEBAII3Y 10
a1qeAeg SjunoY PI0N (1 a10)) uonoRsURI |, [RWLIIOUQY S{ieja(] uonIBSURL ]

£ AT4VL

(saejjo(q uBMIR L, AMAN Jo spuesnoy ], uf)

0207 ‘1€ YIHNIOTA QHANT YVIA THL ¥OA
TVLIdVO NIFAIVd HL 40 %07 YO NOTTTIA 001$IN LSVIT LV OL ONLLNAOWY SALLYVd QALY THY OL STTVS 40 NO¥A SASVHDUNd TVIOL

QLT ‘ANVINOD YOLOW NVSSIN NOTNA




-09-

"PajR[NOED JOU SI 9)1 JOAOLIN] ‘DI0JAIIY ‘SI[ES UIOY SSOIOE JOU ‘UOIN A JO JJeyaq uo Aurduio) sip Aq pred xe) Ajpouniiod AJUIet SJe UON A WOY 3[qeAlacal opeI], 1T 30N

*Kueduwio ) ) JO JunouIe SuIKLIED 3Y) UO PASEQ SBM DJEL I9AOWIN] BY ],

1 20N
- $60'7Z1 - - 7 90N $60°7T1 sajqeatadal 80| Aueduioy) ay; Jo J03saAut poyfjowl-Ajmbyg uonx
- g 7L8°67T $ - - g $9 111 TL8°6TT § SO[([BAIQ03I SpRI ], ucjnx Jo AreIpisqng uonjerodio)) soueydasoy uemie] | -py7 ‘Auedwio) 1010]A UBSSIN UO[M A
polRg
s1qa( peg juanbasqng e ], Uy junowry (1 930N)
10§ 33UEMOITY i poaraasy syey JoAOUIN adueeg Suipuy diysuonepy jo arnyeN fjaeg parepy awep Aueduio)
sjunowy AMPIAQ

P 41dvVL

(S1e]jo(] UEMIE ], MaN] JO spuesnioy ] ujf)
0207 ‘1€ YHGWIDIA

TV.LIAVD NI-AIVd AHL 0 %07 40 NOTTTIA 001$IN LSVAT LV OL ONILNNONY STLLYVd A LVTIY WOYA STTEVAIIDTY AIAVHL

"ALT ‘ANVJINOD HOLOW NVSSIN NO'INX



-19-

“diysisumo Jo off d pue 1 PINPANE SY) UO PIseq paie[nofed a1om Jusunsaaut Lnba ay; 30 yyoxd 3o sareys pase|sl pue Junoure TWALEd Sy 1AION
31N TP9'19T $SN | TYO'19T $SN | T60°LTY $SN 00°001 wL'L ILI'LS SN | 1L1°LS $Sn jusunsaAuf Spie(S] Ui A ysnug "ou] proyiaf "PYT 0 WUIUNSIAU] SLISIFAQ UL[-14
(Le'es ssn) (iLe'Ls ssm
310N STI'IEL'L S| STUTEL'L § | TT8VYOSLI S 00°001 L86'¢8 £36'LV8'T S | €86'LYR'l § WSUSIAU] Spue{s] vewde) 'PYT 0D JUSUISIAU] SEIASIIAQ UB(-IA P ‘Auduro]) 1010} UeSSIN UOIN &
junouy o (spuesnoyy, 6107 0T07
aoN .«h_.wummm u@eﬂ”%u::ﬂa«_wr Budiie) o up) {0 | ‘1€ 1quI( | ‘1§ aquiadag S)INPOIJ PUB SISSIUISRY UIBIA] uoneIoy Auedwo)) 33353AuU] Auedwo)) 10)s3Au}
0707 ‘1€ 12quIdda(f jo Sy JUROWY JUIUISIAU] [EUITII0

sq1avL

(s1eljo( "SM) PUE SIBJJOQ UBAIE] A3N JO SpUBSTION ], U])
0707 ‘1€ YITNIADAA CAANT VAKX THL JOA

STALSTANI NO NOLLVIAIOANI

"ALT ‘ANVAIIOD HOLOW NVSSIN NOTNA




snjoay noyziueng jo Suipjoyaseys syt ssealour of [esodsip oyl wWoy spasooid ayy pasn pue “pyr <o) AFoouda], oA UBT UMNZUSYS pue Py “0D) sie)) Pasy) uojng Fusg Juoq TPy “oD sjiqowolny snjoay jo sBurpjoyaleys sy Jo pasodsip Luedwos ayL

‘8007 ‘ZZ 1SNANY U0 S1IBYY MIOUSE JO AISHIIA 1} 19PUN UOISSIIWO.) JUAUWNSIAL] Ay Aq PINSs! , BUID PUBIUIRI Ul uone1adoo) [Eo1uoa [, 10 1UsusaAu] Jo [eao1ddy ay Fuiuiaaon uopenday,, SU3 UIm 2OUBPIODIE UL Pale[afed sem jnwly Jaddn atj |

-79-

“(puesnoy 0£S'8 1$SN) PUBSHOY) £86°£8SS SI UBAE WO JUSWISIAUL 10] 30UBYIUWISI PIZAINO P3IRINWNIIE 31} Japun sjjey Jeq) 2dud [esodsip ayj) Jo Junowe ay L "ouf p1opaf ydnonp 'pry 0D sfiqowroiny

“diys1oumo Jo a8 eIuso1ad pue SHUSWLILIS [EIOUBUY PAIIPNE 3U) UO PASEq PAJR{MAJEd 319M JUaUISaAUl A1Inbs oy JO awoou] JusUNSIAU] Pajejal pue junoure FuiAues SyL

‘uorfas pany e ur pa1gsidor Auedurod JUSUNSAAUL UE “oUf PIOJIIL YFNORJ) SINSIAU 351} SUMO APoaslpy Auedwo) ayf,

'p 3ION

1€ 310N

17 9JON

11 9JON

1EL'V00°E1S

(229'€01$SN) TT6'6LT'ES (1L1°LS$SN) THY T¥8'1S

(g 210N)

VAQIA ‘UOISSIUIIO.) JUIL)SIAU]

Aq parendyS yuaurysasu]

J0 Junowy 3y} uo g Jaddn

0207 ‘1€ 1oquiazag
30 58 BUIYD) PUBUIB]Y
U} JUIUWISIAU] 10} ADULIUIY
PABMINQ PAR[RUWNRIDY

VAQOIA ‘UOISSIWUIOT) JUIMIISIAU]
Aq PzZLIOYjNY SJUNOUIY JUIUI)SIAU]

(¥ 10N)
(€19'12T'1 $SM|(g9L'60S  $SM) (TLeLer  $SM)|(6vSEES  $SN) (1Ly'se  $Sn) (1p6'91  $SN) (osz'eoe TaNy) S30IAIGS Pale]al PUE SAIM[IA ‘P10
8YLY90'6¢E 0v0'815'y1 EEY0EL'9 1£8'S9L°ST 69T 98LYT1'1 - 661°LES 1 310N 10Z°98t°6 pue sped Jo Juumoeynuew pue Suidojsaad| sjiqowoIny snjosy noyzduen
(ep8'6€l  $SMY|(5L9'ss  $SM)J(TeL'8T  $SM|(LLT'ETT  $SM) (ooL'tz  $sn) (ooL'1z  $SM) (00§ Z£0" 1Y) $9J1AL3S pajejal pue sajon|aA PI1T00
796'09¢'y  $ | S19°S85°1 $ | SLY'ESS S 8STYrEE § 6591 968°91L $ g1~ 968911 $ 1 310N 8,0'67s'y  § | puesued jo Suumoeynuew pue Suidojprsq) spiqoutony JuedJuery snjoay
0207 f
¢ 0z0z JusuIISIAU] ‘1€ 12quadag oe0z hﬁoam“g:ﬂ.
I£ 12qu3sq 020z (z3eN) 13241pujf Jose ueMJE], WOlJ (soapuy o
Joseawoouy | ‘[¢ Jaquiadaq uen) PNSAAUIA | 4, Hov“:a jo0 UTMIE], Woyy mopug mopgmo u__mr.:m?E 19211q “83) reades ui-pre S)INPOIJ PUE SISSIUISNE ULE KLuedwoy 93)s9A1
JUISIAU] Jo sejunowy : Joowoduf N |y Ny JUDUE)SIAU] Juou)SaAUY fded ul-pied 1Inpold p Isng uie]\l 29 1
Jo uoyeryeday Suifiie) juounsaAn] HSBUMO 40} asuedjiuay 40} BduUEHILY Jo poypI
pajEjRmNAIY % paesIng passing
pajejnunIdy
pAEMUWNIY SMO[,] JUIWISAAUL

9dTdVL

(N Pue SIBHo( ‘S'[] “SAe[[o(] YEMIBL MIN JO Spuesnoy |, uy)
0707 ‘1€ YAIWIDIA AAANT YVIA FHL HOA
VNIHD ANVINIVIA NI SINFALLSTIANI NO NOILLVINYOQJANI

‘dLT ‘ANVAINOD HOLOW NVSSIN NOTNA




TABLE 7

YULON NISSAN MOTOR COMPANY, LTD.

INFORMATION OF MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Shares

Name of Major Shareholder Number of Percentage of
Shares Ownership (%)

Yulon Motor Co., Ltd. 143,500,000 47.83
Nissan Motor Corporation 120,000,000 40.00
Note 1:  The main shareholder information in this table is calculated by the Taiwan Depository & Clearing

Note 2:

Corporation on the last business day at the end of the quarter, and the total number of ordinary shares
and special shares held by the shareholders who have completed the non-physical securities delivery
(including treasury shares) is more than 5%. The share capital recorded in the Company’s consolidated
financial report and the actual number of non-physical securities delivered may be different or
different due to the basis of preparation and calculation.

If the shareholder transfers the shareholding to the Trust, the trustee will open the trust account to
separate the account. As for shareholders who handle the declaration of insider equity holdings of
more than 10% of their shares in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act, their shareholdings
include their shareholdings plus the shares they have delivered to the trust with the rights to make
decisions on trust property. For the registration of shares held by a company insider, refer to the
Market Observation Post System website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
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